
Agenda Item B.6
CONSENT CALENDAR

Meeting Date: June 18, 2019
____________________________________________________________

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM: Michelle Greene, City Manager

CONTACT: Dana Grossi, Management Analyst

SUBJECT: Approval of Library Management Services Agreements with the Cities of 
Buellton and Solvang

RECOMMENDATION:

A. Approve an agreement for the provision of library management services to the City 
of Buellton; and,

B. Approve an agreement for the provision of library management services to the City 
of Solvang.

BACKGROUND:

On December 18, 2018, the City Council directed staff to assume management and 
operations of the Buellton and Solvang Libraries starting on July 1, 2019. This direction was 
conditional upon the County of Santa Barbara's consent to the City's designation of the City 
Council serving as the Library Board of Trustees pursuant to Education Code sections 
18910 et. seq. Since that time, the County has indicated their consent on this matter. On 
February 19, 2019, Council approved an amendment to the City's Municipal Code Chapter 
2.13 to formally designate the City Council as the Library Board of Trustees. A new Chapter 
was also adopted (Ch. 2.14), which established a Library Advisory Commission 
(Commission). The Commission is active and serves in an advisory capacity to the Library 
Board of Trustees.

Staff have prepared agreements with the Cities of Buellton and Solvang for the first year of 
library management services. The purpose for this item is for the Council to review and
approve the agreements.

DISCUSSION:

Staff have been working with the City Managers of the Cities of Buellton and Solvang to 
coordinate details of the library management services agreements. Each agreement is 
customized to the specific service needs of each city, and the agreement terms are
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proposed to be concurrent with the term of the Countywide Library Services Agreement, 
which is annual and in alignment with the fiscal year. Therefore, the agreements will 
commence once signed and are set to expire on June 30, 2020, with an option for both 
parties to mutually extend the respective agreements for five successive one-year 
terms. 

Draft Agreement with City of Buellton
The draft agreement with the City of Buellton is included as Attachment 1 to this report. 
Recognizing that the City of Buellton owns its library building, the agreement has been 
crafted to dually serve as a lease and library management services agreement. Buellton 
will lease the building to Goleta for an annual rental rate of one dollar ($1.00). 

Services to be provided by Goleta to Buellton are detailed in Exhibit A of the agreement 
(Statement of Work), and consist of general library management services including 
administration, management and operation of the library services, provision of 
personnel and other resources, tools, programs and services, including lending books 
and other materials, cataloguing the library's collection, and other related activities 
consistent with the operation of a free public library. In addition, the City of Goleta will 
also have the ability to apply for, administer, and implement any grant opportunities for 
the benefit of Buellton. 

Buellton has also asked Goleta to share building maintenance responsibilities by
providing certain maintenance services on an as-needed basis. Exhibit A-1 of the 
agreement details the specific maintenance tasks that Goleta will perform versus 
Buellton. Staff are pursuing a small-amount contract with a local vendor in the Santa 
Ynez Valley for the Goleta-provided maintenance services. The City of Buellton will be 
providing custodial services at the library facility, in addition to managing the building's
utilities accounts including water, sewer, refuse, electric and gas.

Draft Agreement with City of Solvang
The draft agreement with the City of Solvang is included as Attachment 2. Services to 
be provided to Solvang by Goleta are detailed in Exhibit A, and consist of the same 
general library management services as will be performed by Goleta for the City of 
Buellton, including shared maintenance tasks detailed in Exhibit A-1. However, whereas 
the City of Buellton will provide custodial services at their facility, the City of Goleta will 
be providing custodial services for the Solvang library facility, which is a County-owned 
building. Costs for the Goleta-provided custodial services have been added to Solvang's 
proposed operating budget for FY 2019-2020. Staff will pursue a small-amount contract 
with a custodial vendor for the needed services.

Level of Service and Staffing 
The Statement of Work in Exhibit A of both agreements describes the baseline level of 
service and staffing levels to be provided by Goleta to the branches. Services are 
assumed to continue at status-quo levels; however, a process is outlined in the 
agreements for any requests from the Cities of Buellton and Solvang for enhanced
levels of regular library-related services such as additional staffing, hours of operation, 
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one-time or periodic services. Any such requests would need to be budgeted for and the 
applicable management fee would be applied by Goleta to Solvang and/or Buellton.

Proposed Operating Budgets for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Since the time that the proposed operating budgets for Buellton and Solvang were last
shared with the Council on December 18, 2018, revisions have been made in various 
areas to reflect updated and new information received. This included adjustments to 
personnel and various services and supplies. The most updated versions of the budgets 
are included as Exhibit D in both agreements (Attachments 1 and 2). 

Projected Deficits
As was the case in the previous budget versions, both library branches are projecting 
expenditures to exceed total available revenues in FY 2019-2020. The revised total 
deficit projected for the City of Buellton for FY 2019-2020 is $52,087.83. Buellton has 
confirmed that they will be able to fund this shortage. The City of Solvang's total 
projected deficit is $74,897.83. Solvang is unable to fund the entire shortage, but has 
committed to funding half of that amount; the County of Santa Barbara intends to fund 
the remaining half of the shortage, pending a formal decision by the County Board of 
Supervisors. Nonetheless, the library management services agreements include a 
provision that Goleta will not be responsible for funding, or fronting any funds, to cover 
these deficits. If for any reason the cities and/or County are unable to fund projected 
deficits, service level and staff adjustments will be made to balance the libraries’ 
budgets.

Goleta Employment Contingency Offers
There are a total of 11 staff positions at both libraries (5 positions at the Buellton Library 
and 6 positions at the Solvang Library). Goleta offers of employment were provided in 
April to the current staff. To date, Goleta staff are aware of two positions at the Buellton 
Library that need to be advertised for and filled: 1) the Senior Library Technician; and 2) 
a Library Assistant 1 position that is currently vacant.

The offers made to the current employees are contingent upon the execution of the 
library services agreements by all respective parties. The Solvang City Council 
approved the agreement on May 28, 2019, and the Buellton City Council approved the 
agreement on June 13, 2019.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

There are no fiscal impacts associated with this item. The City's costs to manage of the 
Buellton and Solvang Libraries will be recouped using the full cost recovery approach 
detailed at the November 14 and December 18, 2018 Council meetings. This approach 
will utilize a time and materials survey that tracks and incorporates the hourly labor and 
benefit rate of City staff providing support to the libraries. This cost for the first year is 
approximately $35,382 for each library branch for a total of $70,764. Future year 
management fees are subject to change annually due to increases in labor and benefit 
rates or updates to time and materials survey, and will be communicated to each library 
during the annual operating budget proposal.  
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The first-year cost estimates are based on information received from prior management, 
along with assumptions made for the upcoming year on estimated costs. Because this 
cost model estimates the costs for the upcoming year, a comparison of what was 
estimated and actually experienced will be performed after the close of next year. The 
difference in actual costs, whether higher (due to actual costs exceeding estimated 
costs) or lower (due to estimated costs exceeding actual costs), is then included in the 
costs estimated for two years later in order to true-up the estimated costs billed next 
year to the actual costs incurred. The cost model details and true-up to actual costs 
schedule are found in Exhibit C in both Attachment 1 and 2. 

Buellton and Solvang Libraries are funded by their respective city’s general fund, 
County per capita funding, library generated revenues, and donations. In FY 2019/20, 
the City of Buellton will be invoiced $193,729 as part of their city contribution, and City 
of Solvang will be invoiced approximately for $178,983 for their city contribution. The 
budgets for both libraries are found in Exhibit D (Attachment 1 and 2). 

ALTERNATIVES:

The City Council could choose not to approve the draft agreements in their current form. 
However, any delay to executing these agreements would impact the Buellton and 
Solvang Libraries operations, including the staff and patrons. The City of Santa Barbara 
will no longer be managing the branches as of July 1, 2019. Therefore, execution of the 
agreements is vital to ensuring a smooth transition in library management from the City 
of Santa Barbara to the City of Goleta by this date.

Legal Review By: Approved By:

___________________             ___________________    
Michael Jenkins Michelle Greene
City Attorney            City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

1. City of Buellton Library Management Services Agreement
2. City of Solvang Library Management Services Agreement
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